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The College Inn is located in Seattle's University District, one 
block west of the University of Washington campus. At the time 
of its construction in 1909, the campus was the site of the Alaska- 
Yukon-Pacific Exposition, and Ye College Inn was intended to 
function as a small hotel for the fair's visitors and later to 
provide housing and food services for the university's students.

Situated on the northeast corner of N.E. 40th Street and University 
Way N.E. (formerly 14th Avenue N.E.), the building comprises three 
floors, a basement and an attic. The concrete, brick, and wood- 
frame structure is rectangular in plan and occupies the entire 
103' x 40' corner lot. The two major street elevations feature 
large display windows for ground floor shops, two-story projecting 
window bays, and gabled dormers with decorative wood and stucco 
finish simulating half-timber work. Exterior finish is stucco 
except for the lower portion of the east elevation and the entire 
gable end wall on the north elevation, which are faced with brick. 
Fenestration of the south and west street elevations above the 
ground story consists of casement windows grouped in twos or threes 
with sills and heads continued as narrow horizontal bands across 
each projecting bay. The original windows of multipaned hinged 
sash (some of which still remain in the attic dormers) were replaced 
by single-light sash about 1960. Windows of the east and north 
elevations have eight-over-eight light double-hung sash, with the 
upper stair landing pair enlarged to twelve-over-twelve lights with 
an eight-light transom.

A concrete foundation encloses a full basement which has been re­ 
cently renovated. Originally, only the western half was finished 
and housed Ye College Grill. The College Inn Pub now occupies the 
entire below-grade space. A portion of the original fir paneling 
which remained from the Grill was replicated for the renovation of 
the basement and ground-floor College Inn Cafe.

The street level shops have undergone numerous changes of occupants, 
use, entry, and spatial 'arrangements over the years. The corner 
cafe, a delicatessen, and a mountaineering equipment retail store 
are the present tenants. The entrance to the Inn has been restored 
to its original position on N.E. 40th Street. A glazed and paneled 
entry door with segmental arched transom and sidelights gives access 
to a small lobby, where a terrazo floor with a mosaic of four shields 
and the inscription "Ye College Inn" has been uncovered.

In 1960 the two upper floors comprising the Inn were drastically 
modified to accommodate apartments. Kitchens and additional baths 
were installed and room partitions were changed. In 1979 the 
present owners undertook a major renovation of the building in
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order to return it to its original function as a guest house. All 
installations for the apartments were removed, interior walls and 
room arrangements were restored, original wood trim and detailing 
were duplicated. Several of the rooms retain the original wide 
built-in seats in the spacious window bays. Some former residents 
report that the larger rooms originally had a raised sitting area 
with a rollaway bed stored beneath it, but no physical evidence of 
this arrangement could be found during the rehabilitation of the 
building.

New elements include code-required sprinklers, electrical, plumbing 
and heating systems, and modern communal bathrooms. The attic, 
which had remained unfinished, was converted to a guest breakfast 
room and piano lounge, with additional private office space and 
manager's apartment, in a manner in keeping with the character of 
the building.
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The College Inn is significant to the City of Seattle as one of the 
few remaining buildings associated with the Alaska-Yukon-Pacific 
Exposition of 1909. Built by a locally prominent real estate 
developer, Charles Cowen, the Tudor style Inn was designed by the 
architectural firm of Graham & Myers, predecessor of the present 
international firm, John Graham & Company.\

The Alaska-Yukon-Pacific Exposition, located on the campus of the 
University of Washington and occupying 250 of the school's 355 acres, 
was held from June 1 to October 16, 1909. Touted as the first 
world's fair to be ready on time, the exposition did not commemorate 
a significant event in our nation's history, as had earlier American 
fairs, but had as its theme "a broad commercial proposition." Its 
stated purposes were "to exploit the resources and potentialities 
of the Alaska and Yukon territories in the United States and the 
Dominion of Canada, to make known and foster the vast importance of 
the trade of the Pacific Ocean and of the countries bordering thereon, 
and to demonstrate the marvelous progress of western America."

By all accounts the exposition was a huge success, and at its close 
several of the permanent buildings were given'over to the university 
in exchange for the use of its land. Of these, only one major and 
one minor structure, and portions of some supporting elements such 
as the powerhouse, remain on the campus today. In the surrounding 
neighborhood no other known building associated with the fair exists 
except for The College Inn.

The person responsible for the creation of the Inn was Charles 
Cowen, an ambitious man of entrepeneurial talents who had arrived in 
Seattle in 1900. Born in England in 1869, Cowen had grown up in 
South Africa, where his family were diamond miners and merchants. 
In 1890 he was sent to New York to purchase electrical equipment for 
the mines and decided never to return. He apparently broke with his 
family, changed his name from Cohen to Cowen, and settled first in 
New York State, then Florida, and finally Seattle.

In 1900 Seattle was- embarking on a decade of rapid growth. Cowen 
saw the opportunities in property development and established the 
Haynes-Cowen Real Estate Company. In 1906 he purchased 40 acres of 
stump land north of the new site of the University of Washington,
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platted it, surfaced the streets, and placed it on the market. Twelve 
acres of wooded land were set aside and donated to the city as Cowen 
Park. When the Alaska-Yukon-Pacific Exposition opened three years 
later, Cowen placed a large billboard advertising property for sale 
in his University Park addition near the main entrance to the fair. 
One block west of this main entrance Cowen built Ye College Inn, 
reportedly for the out-of-town owner of the property, J.R. Hendren 
of Kansas City. The Inn served as a guest house for the fair's 
visitors and, when the exposition closed, Cowen purchased the property 
which then provided housing and food services for the university's^ 
students. Later, he opened the first movie theater in the University 
District, which he named Ye College Playhouse.

Cowen reportedly always retained his distinctive English manner, 
dressing in British tweeds and speaking with a pronounced British 
accent. It is no surprise then that he chose an English architect 
to design Ye College Inn in a modified Tudor style. John Graham, a 
native of Liverpool, had been trained as an architect in England, 
but began his architectural career by opening a one-man office in 
Seattle in 1900. During the early years of his practice he con­ 
centrated on the design of private residences and formed a brief 
partnership with another English immigrant, Alfred Bodley. This re­ 
lationship was terminated in 1904 and the following year David J. 
Myers joined Graham. Myers had gone to Boston in 1894 to study at 
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and the Boston Architectural 
Club. He then worked for important firms in Boston and Pittsburgh, 
but returned to Seattle to form a partnership with John Graham in 1905 
At the end of the decade each man went his separate way—Graham 
branching out to commercial and institutional design, and Myers 
eventually becoming a partner in the new firm of Schack, Young & Myers

The combination of two professional men of British ancestry utilizing 
their talents to design and develop an exceptional commercial property 
and the close association of this property with a significant Pacific 
Northwest event such as the Alaska-Yukon-Pacific Exposition gives 
the College Inn a special place in the history of Seattle. It has 
long been a familiar landmark in the University District, where 
generations of students, including two former mayors, have resided 
during their college years.
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